
KAHALU‘U NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 29
Heeia Kea, Ahuimanu, Kahalu’u, Waihe‘e, Kaalaea, Waiahole, Waikane, Hakipuu, Kualoa

c/o KEY PROJECT  47-200 WAIHE‘E ROAD  KANEOHE, HAWAII, 96744
PHONE: (808) 768-3710  FAX: (808) 768-3711  INTERNET: www.honolulu.gov/nco

“LET US NOT EVER HAVE AN UNHAPPY MINORITY; RATHER, LET US BUILD A COMMUNITY CONSENSUS.”

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

DRAFT – REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
KAHALU‘U KEY PROJECT

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Flora Obayashi called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. A quorum was established with
12 members present. Note – This 15-member Board requires eight (8) members to establish quorum and to take
official Board action.

Board Members Present: Anthony Austin, Dan Bender, Peter Burns, Michael Canute, Ken Goldstein, Ron Kubo, Ken
LeVasseur, Clifford Loo, Art Machado (arrived at 7:03 p.m.), Yvonne Nelson, Flora Obayashi, Marina Pasion, Lola
Tangaro (arrived at 7:05 p.m.), and Jeannie Wong.

Board Members Absent: Lee Gomes.

Guests: Captain Guy Seto Mook (Honolulu Fire Department), Lieutenant Darryl Kon (Honolulu Police Department),
Deputy Director Art Challacombe, Department of Planning and Permitting (Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s representative),
Michael Sakata (Council Chair Ernie Martin’s Office), Tiffany Patrick (Marine Corps Base Hawaii), Barry Usagawa
(Board of Water Supply), Vanessa Stewart (Blue Zones Project), Peter Field, Karen Field, Michael Kato, Marie
Samudio, Carol Mulford, John Reppun, Won-Seok Yuen, Bennett Young, Brian Nuss (Kailua Community Emergency
Response Team) and Uyen Vong (Neighborhood Commission Office).

CITY/STATE MONTHLY REPORTS:

Honolulu Fire Department (HFD): Captain Guy Seto Mook reported the following: August 2015 Statistics: There were
4 fires, 43 medical emergencies, and 12 miscellaneous calls.

Honolulu Police Department (HPD): Lieutenant Darryl Kon reported the following:
 August 2015 Statistics: There were 5 motor vehicle thefts, 10 burglaries, 19 thefts, and 10 unauthorized

entries into motor vehicles.
 Smart 911: Residents can register his or her smartphone and submit a personal profile that includes a home

address and contact number. Smart 911 is available in 40 states. Registration will allow for faster assistance
when calling 911.

Machado arrived at 7:03 p.m.; 13 members were present.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Security: Goldstein asked and Lieutenant Kon replied that Smart 911 is similar to other phone applications in

terms of security.

Tangaro arrived at 7:05 p.m.; 14 members were present.

2. Mitigating Traffic: Bender asked if there is a better way of mitigating traffic after an accident. Lieutenant Kon
replied that experienced or trained officers would have had the cars moved to the side of the road.

3. Smart 911: A resident commented that it took her 25 minutes to sign up for Smart 911.

Board of Water Supply (BWS): BWS representative Barry Usagawa reported at a later time.

Department of Health (DOH) Update: A representative was not present. No report was provided.

INFORMATIONAL SESSION:



KAHALU‘U NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 29 WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
DRAFT – REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 7

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

Marine Corps Base Hawaii (MCBH): Tiffany Patrick reported the following:
 The Sunset Flight Line 5K: The Sunset Flight Line 5K will be held on Friday, September 18, 2015 at 5:30

p.m. Online registration will be open until Monday, September 14, 2015. The public is welcome to participate.
Visit www.mcchawaii.com for more information.

 The Kaneohe Bay Air Show: The Kaneohe Bay Air Show will be held on Saturday, October 17, 2015 and
Sunday, October 18, 2015. The event is free and open to the public. Carpool is highly encouraged. MCBH is
seeking volunteers for the event. Visit www.kaneohebayairshow.com/volunteers for more information. The
Blue Angels will be practicing during the week prior to the airshow.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. The Kaneohe Bay Air Show: Burns asked and Patrick confirmed that volunteers are requested to assist with

the air show from Friday to Sunday, October 16-18, 2015.
2. Blue Angels Pilot: Machado commented that one of the Blue Angels pilot is from Hawaii and is a graduate

from Maryknoll School.
3. Blue Angels’ Schedule: A resident asked and Patrick answered that the Blue Angels will be performing on

Friday, Saturday, and Sunday of the weekend of October 16-18, 2015.

Kaneohe Bay Regional Council (KBRC): A representative was not present. No report was provided.

REPORTS OF MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE AT OTHER MEETINGS:

Kahekili Highway Public Information Meeting:
 Attendance by LeVasseur: LeVasseur commented that half of the Kahalu‘u Neighborhood Board No. 29

attended a meeting at Ahuimanu Elementary School to discuss proposed improvement projects for Kahekili
Highway. LeVasseur expressed disappointment and confusion over the proposal, and commented that those
who opposed the proposal did not have an opportunity to present. LeVasseur also noted that the earliest
start date is 2020.

 Attendance by Machado: Machado reported his attendance at the meeting, and expressed disappointment
with the proposed plans. Machado noted the following: Circumstances may change in five (5) years. The
speakers should have been better prepared with answers when the community brings their questions. There
is another meeting to discuss land occupation on Tuesday, October 13, 2015, 7:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at
Ahuimanu Elementary School. Improvements for Kahekili Highway should be made now, not in 2020, or it
would be akin to Kamehameha Highway.

 Attendance by Austin: Austin expressed the same sentiments as Machado and LeVasseur, and commented
that the answers provided at the meeting were vague.

 Amy Luerson: Chair Obayashi commented that former board member Amy Luersen made a motion
regarding Kahekili Highway when she was on the board, and that Luersen is still involved with the issue.

 Project Manager: Goldstein commented that he did not attend the meeting, but he had spoken with the
project manager of the Kahekili Highway improvements project.

 Attendance by Kubo, Loo, Nelson, and Obayashi: Kubo, Loo, Nelson, and Chair Obayashi also attended the
meeting. Kubo and Nelson expressed the same sentiments as the previous speakers. Chair Obayashi
commented that she found it interesting that the proposed plans are for current conditions, not future
expansions. Chair Obayashi noted that Malaekahana, also known as the “third city”, is not mentioned in the
proposed plans.

Resident Carole Mulford commented that the reason why Kamehameha Highway was not mentioned at the meeting
is because Kahekili Highway is a State highway and Kamehameha Highway is a City highway. Another resident
commented that now is the time to act, instead of waiting for a possible change of administration at the State and
City level.

Chair Obayashi reminded board members that this agenda item allows for reports of attendance at other meetings,
not discussion of the meeting topics as those issues would have to be listed as agenda items.

COMMUNITY PROJECTS AND CONCERNS:

Special Management Area Permit #2015-SMA-38 Update: DPP Deputy Director Art Challacombe presented the
following:

 Background: A Special Management Area (SMA) is an area along the coastal regions that requires greater
environmental protection of marine and coastal resources due to the coasts being more vulnerable to



KAHALU‘U NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 29 WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
DRAFT – REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 7

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

environmental hazards and harm. The State Legislature passed this law in 1975 to protect precious marine
resources, coastal beaches, archeological and historical sites, and coastal wetlands.

 Exemption: The development project by Oahu Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SPCA) was
exempt from DPP review via Act 203, a state law that allows residential agricultural structures to be built on
agriculture land without a building permit review. However, a SMA permit is still required.

 Rejection of Application: DPP reviewed the application last week and rejected the application due to a
number of deficiencies relating to zoning. Per DPP, the structure on the property is a kennel.

 Application Requirements: The kennel on the property is subject to the article provisions of the Land Use
Ordinance (LUO) which means that the kennel must be at least 100 feet away from the property line, or that
the kennel must be air conditioned and sound proof. There is no evidence from the information submitted by
the applicant that the kennel is air conditioned or soundproof. At a previous special meeting, Oahu SPCA
representative Stephanie Ryan showed a picture that the kennel complied with the 100 feet rule. However,
the picture showed that the kennel is 100 feet from the easement, not the property line. Other issues that
were not addressed by Oahu SPCA include flooding or wetlands mitigation plans.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Easement: A resident asked and Deputy Director Challacombe responded that the easement is not on the

property, and the kennels are located less than 100 feet from the property line.
2. Septic System: A resident asked and Deputy Director Challacombe replied that DPP did not receive a good

explanation on how Oahu SPCA would dispose of the waste materials.
3. Traffic Issues: Machado commented about traffic. Deputy Director Challacombe replied that issues relating

to traffic are not a component under SMA, and are not under the purview of the DPP.
4. Deadline to Respond: Austin asked if there is a deadline for Oahu SPCA to submit responses to DPP’s

concerns. Deputy Director Challacombe replied that there is no deadline.
5. Air Conditioning: Loo commented that Oahu SPCA representative Stephanie Ryan was not telling the truth

about the kennel being air conditioned.
6. Rejected Application: Chair Obayashi noted that there is no need for further discussion since the application

was rejected. Resident John Reppun commented that the board should pay further attention to the project
since there was a groundbreaking for the project. Mr. Reppun asked Chair Obayashi to retain this item on
the agenda for the next meeting.

7. Construction: Kubo commented that there is ongoing construction in the wetlands area, and asked if the
construction is legal. Deputy Director Challacombe replied that DPP is investigating the issue.

8. Groundbreaking: Austin asked if Oahu SPCA is doing more than just groundbreaking. Deputy Director
Challacombe replied that DPP is investigating.

9. Red Flags: Wong commented that she finds the situation questionable since the application is for a minor
permitting project because it is under $500,000, and that it does not require a building permit since it is less
than 8,000 square feet. Deputy Director Challacombe stated that additional costs will incur if Oahu SPCA
installs air conditioning and sound proofing, which would meet the $500,000 threshold to require approval by
the City Council of a major SMA application.

10. Public Hearing: LeVasseur asked if public hearings are required for both minor and major SMA applications.
Deputy Director Challacombe commented only major SMA permits require public hearings.

11. Ingress/Egress: John Reppun asked if a permit is required for the ingress/egress for the wetland area on
Kamehameha Highway. Deputy Director Challacombe said Oahu SPCA has exempted itself from having to
apply for building permits since the structures are on agricultural lands. The resident commented that this
issue should be relayed to the US Army Corps since the wetland was designated by the federal government.
Mr. Reppun requested the US Army Corps, US Fish and Wildlife Services to present at a future meeting.

12. Agenda: Chair Obayashi commented that this topic will be on the agenda for the October 2015 meeting, and
noted that the board is recessing in November 2015.

Hearing no objections, Chair Obayashi returned to agenda item II.C: Board of Water Supply.

Board of Water Supply: Barry Usagawa reported the following:
 Main Break Report: There are no main breaks to report.
 Potable Water: The potable water production for the week ending on Saturday, August 22, 2015 was 154

million gallons per day.
 Water Conservation: Due to this year’s dry season, BWS will be extending its water conservation program

until the end of October 2015. Everyone should be cognizant of their water usage.
 General Water Announcements: The BWS and friends of Halawa Xeriscape Garden continue to offer

Saturday workshops that highlight the concept of xeriscaping – an innovative means of conserving water



KAHALU‘U NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 29 WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
DRAFT – REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 7

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

through efficient landscaping. The new 2015-2016 xeriscape workshop schedule features dozens of new and
popular workshops that offer useful tips on how to maintain a beautiful and water-efficient garden. Upcoming
workshops include “Plants Drink Tea Too” on Saturday, September 12, 2015, “Daily Uses for Neem” on
Saturday, September 26, 2015, and “Economical Aquaponics” on Saturday, October 10, 2015. Advance
registration is required to attend. Call 748-5320 or email workshops@hbws.org to reserve a space. Visit
www.boardofwatersupply.com to check out the full list of classes being offered. The Halawa Xeriscape
Garden remains open to the public on Wednesdays and Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Residents
are welcomed to drop by to see the dozens of visually attractive and less-thirsty plants on display.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Water Bill: Machado commented that he was wrongfully billed by BWS, and wanted to warn others to check

their monthly water bill carefully.
2. E. Coli: Chair Obayashi asked for comments on the recent news of BWS confirming the presence of E. coli in

the Waihe‘e Tunnel water source. Usagawa replied that the water has been shut off, and once properly
disinfected, the water will be turned on again. Usagawa added that up to this point, there has been little
bacteria contamination in the Waihe‘e Tunnel water source. The water should be turned on again next week.
Chair Obayashi asked and Usagawa replied that the announcement in the newspaper and on other public
information forums is required by law.

3. Boiled Water: A resident asked if it is necessary to boil the water. Usagawa replied that it is not, and that the
water will be tested before it is turned on again.

4. Drought: Resident Marie Samudio commented that a drought is expected on the windward side of Oahu later
this year. Usagawa replied that the National Weather Service predicted an above normal rainfall until
October 2015, and will be followed by a dry winter. Usagawa noted that there are six (6) wells that have low
levels of water, and two (2) wells that are on alert level. This is the reason for the conservation extension.
BWS will continue to monitor the situation and take the necessary precautions and actions.

5. WAI Meeting on Waihe‘e Tunnel: John Reppun reported that WAI (Waihe’e Ahupua’a Initiative) monitored
Waihe’e Tunnel access over the weekend and over 3,000 hikers were counted. Mr. Reppun announced that
there is a meeting regarding Waihe‘e Tunnel on Friday, October 9, 2015, 9:00 a.m. at KEY Project.

6. Water Testing: Usagawa commented that BWS is testing the Waihe‘e Tunnel water source several times a
week.

7. Strain of E. Coli: Mr. Reppun asked for the strain of the E. coli. Usagawa stated that it may be an animal
strain. Canute commented that most strains of E. coli are harmless.

REPORTS BY PUBLIC OFFICIALS:

Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s Representative: Department of Planning and Permitting (DPP) Deputy Director Art
Challacombe reported the following: Bill 20: Bill 20, relating to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs), was approved by
the City Council and is expected to be signed by Mayor Caldwell next week. Deputy Director Challacombe can give a
formal presentation on Bill 20 at a subsequent meeting.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Subdivisions: Goldstein asked if Bill 20 includes subdivisions. Deputy Director Challacombe replied that it

does not.
2. Agriculture Lands: Loo asked and Deputy Director Challacombe responded that ADUs cannot be built on

agriculture lands. Deputy Director Challacombe added that a check list of requirements such as having
adequate sewer, water, fire protection and transportation is available for individuals interested in getting an
ADU. The check list is similar to that for Ohana units. Homes with cesspools would have to seek an
additional approval from the State Department of Health (DOH). DPP will not issue a permit without the
necessary approvals.

3. Kamehameha Highway: Machado asked for an update on Kamehameha Highway. Deputy Director
Challacombe noted that he has not observed any work being done, and that the current project for
Kamehameha Highway is a BWS project.

4. Footprint of ADU: A resident asked and Deputy Director Challacombe replied that the maximum footprint is
50% of the lot coverage. Deputy Director Challacombe added that an ADU is similar to a tiny home.

5. Kamehameha Highway: A resident asked why there are two (2) different projects by the City and BWS when
the work is being done on the same road. Usagawa will provide an update next meeting. The resident asked
and Usagawa replied that the interconnections, among other things, are not finished yet so the completion
time has been extended.



KAHALU‘U NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 29 WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
DRAFT – REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 7

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

6. ADU Requirements: A resident asked and Deputy Director Challacombe answered that the ADU does not
have to be connected to the main house, and that the maximum footage is 800 square feet. There is no
maximum footage for Ohana units, but now, Ohana units are allowed to be detached from the main house.

7. Sewage Fee: A resident commented that sewage fee is doubled for a duplex, and asked if the fee is also
doubled for ADUs. Deputy Director Challacombe replied that an ADU will not be approved for duplexes, and
that the sewer fee will be the same amount as the fee for two (2) single-family homes.

8. Ahuimanu Road Safety: Michael Kato reported that there is a series of blind S-turns on Ahuimanu Road on
which TheBus also travels on. LeVasseur commented that Ahuimanu Road is a private road that is
maintained by the City. Mr. Kato asked for safety solutions. Deputy Director Challacombe will follow up with
DTS, DFM, and DDC, and noted that area residents can agree to have a Sidewalk Improvement District
which works by having residents share the cost of installing sidewalks with the City. Mr. Kato asked if
TheBus route 65 and 88 can be rerouted, citing that most residents are not happy with the new route due to
safety concerns for pedestrians particularly for keiki. Deputy Director Challacombe will follow up.

9. Detached Unit: Resident Bennett Young asked and Deputy Director Challacombe replied that a detached
unit can be converted to an ADU if the unit received the building permit when it was constructed. The unit
may not meet all the requirements of the ordinance, but zoning adjustments or variances may be made.
Deputy Director Challacombe added that the unit does not have to be detached, however, there should be
some separation.

10. Ahilama Waihe‘e Bridge Photo Update: LeVasseur projected update photos of the board’s ongoing concern
regarding Ahilama Waihe’e Bridge, and commented that there was added erosion in the area due to recent
storms. Deputy Director Challacombe will transmit LeVasseur’s photos to the City Department of Facility
Maintenance (DFM).

Council Chair Ernie Martin: Michael Sakata reported the following:
 Wailehua Road Construction: 10 houses are planned for construction, and proper building permits have been

obtained now.
 Damaged Guardrail: A new guardrail will replace the damaged guardrail on Kamehameha Highway.

Councilmember Ikaika Anderson: A representative was not present and a report was not provided.

Governor David Ige’s Representative: A representative was not present and a report was not provided.

Senator Gil Riviere: A representative was not present and a report was not provided.

Senator Jill Tokuda: A representative was not present and a report was not provided.

Representative Jarrett Keohokalole: A representative was not present and a report was not provided. Chair Obayashi
noted that Representative Keohokalole is on a special trip on Maui tonight, and was unable to attend the meeting.
Chair Obayashi stated Representative Keohokalole conducted a transportation survey with the community, and can
share the results of the survey.

Representative Feki Pouha: Chair Obayashi noted that Representative Pouha was unable to attend tonight’s
meeting, but a report was provided. Chair Obayashi reported the following: Representative Pouha is planning to host
a community meeting in various areas on public safety, and has been working with the DOE to discuss heat
abatement in classrooms. Representative Pouha would also like suggestions from the community on legislative ideas
for the upcoming 2016 legislative session.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Attendance by Elected Officials: A resident thanked the elected officials for sending in reports when they are

unable to send a representative to the meeting. The resident expressed dismay with Senator Tokuda who
has not been attending the neighborhood board meetings.

2. Air Conditioning Units: Austin asked if schools have protocols when receiving air conditioners from donors.
Chair Obayashi stated that Representative Pouha is “facilitating” the donations, and noted that cost of
operating the air conditioner is not provided.

Hearing no objections, Chair Obayashi returned to agenda item V: Community Project and Concerns

Blue Zones Project: Vanessa Stewart of the Blue Zones Project presented the following: Kickoff Event: The kickoff
event for the Blue Zones Project, a wellbeing initiative being launched in Ko‘olaupoko, will be held on Friday, October
16, 2015, 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at Windward Community College. There are activities for kids and adults. Dan



KAHALU‘U NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 29 WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
DRAFT – REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 7

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

Buettner, who is the founder of the Blue Zones Project, will be in attendance, and will be doing a presentation.
Daycare will be provided. Flyers are available at the meeting.

Questions, comments, and concerns followed:
1. Sponsor: Wong asked and Stewart replied that HMSA is the sponsor of Blue Zones Project, but Stewart

works for Healthways, a health care company that holds the rights to the Blue Zones Project. Ko‘olaupoko is
one of the demonstration sites on Oahu.

2. Ko‘olaupoko: Wong asked and Stewart answered that Ko‘olaupoko was chosen as a result of the Kaneohe
Neighborhood Board’s initiative for Kaneohe to be a Blue Zone. Kaneohe was not big enough, so the Blue
Zone was extended to include Ko‘olaupoko.

Kailua Community Emergency Response Team: Community member Brian Nuss presented the following:
 Background: Nuss is a Windward Oahu resident of 12 years, and has been working with the American Red

Cross, and City and State emergency agencies. Nuss is a member of the Kailua Community Emergency
Response Team (CERT) which provides free training to its members in first aid, search and rescues, and
other emergency services. The Hawaii Hazards Awareness & Resilience Program (HHARP) has been
working with the Kaneohe Neighborhood Board No. 30 to provide public education classes on tsunami,
earthquakes. The next emergency preparedness workshop will be held on Wednesday, September 23, 2015,
6:30 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at Key Project. Brochures are available.

 Red Cross Shelters: Red Cross is severely limited on manpower, and not many of its shelters will be
available during a natural disaster. The community will have to step in.

 Free CERT trainings: CERT trainings will be held on Saturdays, September 19 and 26, 2015 for classroom
trainings and Saturday, October 3, 2015 for practical application of the training.

BOARD BUSINESS

Treasurer’s Report: Chair Obayashi reported that $28.25 was spent in August 2015 and that $354.50 remains. The
Treasurer’s report was filed.

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 12, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES: Machado moved and Tangaro
seconded that the Kahalu’u Neighborhood Board No. 29 approve the August 12, 2015 regular meeting
minutes as amended. The motion was ADOPTED UNANIMOUSLY by RAISE OF HANDS, 14-0-0 (AYE: Austin,
Bender, Burns, Canute, Goldstein, Kubo, LaVasseur, Loo, Machado, Nelson, Obayashi, Pasion, Tangaro, and Wong;
NAY: None; ABSTAIN: None). Amendments as followed:

1. Whole Document: Board member “Passion” should be “Pasion”.
2. Page 2, under Reports of Other Meetings: “Heia Park” should be “He‘eia Park”.

‘Olelo Videotaping of Kahalu‘u Neighborhood Board Meetings: Chair Obayashi explained that Treasurer Bender
informed her that there is money in the budget available for the board to participate in the ‘Olelo broadcasting. Chair
Obayashi noted that the board has been shy about being videotaped. Machado commented that the broadcasted
meetings should be held quarterly.

Tangaro moved and Nelson seconded for the Kahalu‘u Neighborhood Board No. 29 to participate in the
‘Olelo broadcasting.

Discussion followed:
1. Support by Austin: Austin commented that he learned and became interested in the neighborhood board

system through watching ‘Olelo.
2. Out of Context: Wong commented that a video may be taken out of context if the viewer is only watching a

clip of the meeting, whereas minutes can provide a summary of what was being said. Wong suggested using
different media outlets for the minutes to be available in.

3. Support by Goldstein: Goldstein voiced support for the ‘Olelo videotaping for elected officials to hear the
concerns of the board and the community.

4. Support by Tangaro: Tangaro asked if the cost of video is $2,000 for the whole year.
5. Price of Videotaping: Machado would like to know the cost of participating in ‘Olelo, and cautioned against

spending $2,000 just for videotaping.
6. Funding Source for Videotaping: Neighborhood Assistant Uyen Vong explained that neighborhood boards

are allotted funds to participate in the ‘Olelo broadcasting or to produce annual newsletter. The service is
usually paid for annually in July. The cost is $2,000 per year or $200 per occasion. Neighborhood Assistant
Vong explained that this funding does not impact the board’s own budget. A board member asked and Vong



KAHALU‘U NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 29 WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
DRAFT – REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 7

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

explained that the board can produce the annual newsletter in lieu of videotaping; the newsletter is produced
by the board, not the Neighborhood Commission Office (NCO).

The motion to participate in Olelo broadcasting was ADOPTED, 8-2-3 (AYE: Austin, Burns, Canute, Goldstein,
Loo, Nelson, Tangaro, and Wong; NAY: Machado and Pasion; ABSTAIN: Kubo, LeVasseur, and Obayashi).

COMMITTEE REPORTS
 Legislation Committee: Legislation Committee Chair Austin commented that the Legislation Committee is

planning to have a meeting next week. Chair Obayashi noted that the agenda for that meeting must be
submitted at least 7 days prior to the meeting. Austin commented that the meeting may be postponed to a
later date.

 Military Liaison Committee: Military Liaison Committee Chair Machado noted that he thought the meeting
was cancelled, and did not attend the meeting.

 Planning Committee: No report was given.
 Preservation of Hawaiian Heritage Committee: Preservation of Hawaiian Heritage Committee Chair Loo

announced that the Ko‘olaupoko Hawaiian Civic Club is hosting a song contest; the song has to pertain to
Ko‘olaupoko. The contest will be held on on Sunday, October 25, 2015, 1:00 p.m. at Windward Mall. Prizes
are available.

 Regional Park Committee: Regional Park Committee Chair Nelson reported that she is working on setting up
an organizational meeting in mid-October.

 School Committee: School Committee Chair Tangaro reported that she has spoken with a few school
principals who said that donors should check with the principal of the school before donating any air
conditioning units. Austin raised concerns about safety issues with air conditioners and fans, and asked if
there are procedures to ensure safety. Tangaro remarked that it is important to check with the principal. Loo
asked and Tangaro commented that it is possible for air conditioners to be earmarked for particular
classrooms. Stewart asked and Tangaro responded schools will also accept fans. Stewart asked and
Tangaro said air conditioners are most needed at Ahuimanu Elementary School, Kahaluu Elementary
School, and Waiahole Elementary School. Machado encouraged everyone to watch the news on how to
donate air conditioners tonight.

 Transportation and Safety Committee: Resident Marie Samudio asked and Transportation Committee Chair
LeVasseur replied that various owners own Ahuimanu Road. Samudio asked if any of the board members
has signed up for CERT classes. Loo commented that a property on Pulama Road belongs to a Lau family,
and that no one has been taking care of the property since the previous caretaker passed away.

 Water and Environment Committee: Committee Chair Obayashi announced that Watson Okubo is on
medical leave, and wishes Okubo a speedy recovery.

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Chair Obayashi announced that the next Kahalu’u Neighborhood Board No. 29 regular meeting
will be held on Wednesday, October 14, 2015, 7:00 p.m. at KEY Project.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 9:23 p.m.

Submitted By: Uyen Vong, Neighborhood Assistant
Reviewed By: Risé Doi, Neighborhood Assistant II
Reviewed and Finalized By: Flora Obayashi, Chairperson


